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To : 
LoveJand Products, Inc. 
and its successors 
71025 569th A venue 
Fairbury, ~'E 68352 

Inspection Site: 
71025 569th A venue 
Fairbury, NE 68352 

:- :: :~ :: ·_ : ~ -: : ·: . . . - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Inspection Number: 
Inspection Date(s}: 
Issuance Date: 

314()61896 
0 7/28/20 11-08/ 12/20 11 
01/23/2012 

This Citation and Notification of Penalty (this Citation) describes violations of the Occupational Safety and Health 
Act of 1970. The penalty(ies) listed herein is (are) based on these violations . You must abate the violations 
referred to in this Citation by the dates listed and pay the pena1ties proposed, unless within 15 working days 
(excluding weekends and Federal holidays) from your receipt of this Citation and Notification of Penalty you mail 
a notice of contest to tbe U.S. Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown above. Please refer to the 
enc.losed booklet (OSHA 3000) which omlines your rights and responsibilities and which should be read in 
conjunction with this form. Issuance of r.his Citation does nor constitute a finding that a violation of the Act has 
occurred unless there is a failure to contest as provided for in the Act or, if contested, unless this Citation is 
affirmed by the Revie\v Commission or a court. 

Posting- The law· requires that a copy of this Citation and Notification of Penalty be posted immediately in a 
prominent place at or near the location of the violation(s) cited herein, or , if it is not practicable because of the 
nature of the employer's operations, where it \vill be readily observable by aU affected employees. This Citation 
must remain posted until the violation(s) cited herein has {have) been abated, or for 3 working days (excluding 
weekends and Federal holidays), whichever is longer. The pena1ty dollar amounts need not be posted and may 
be marked out or covered up prior to posting. 

Informal Conference - An informaJ conference is not required. However, if you wish to have such a 
conference you may request one with the Area Director during the 15 working day contest period. During such 
an informal conference you may present any evidence or views which you believe ,~,.ould support an adjustment 
to the citation(s) and/or penalty(ies). 

If you are considering a request for an informal conference to discuss any issues related to this Citation and 
Kotification of Penalty, you must take care to scheduJe it early enough to allow time to contest after the informa1 
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conference, should you decide to do s.o . Please keep in mind that a \·witten letter of intent to contest must be 
submitted to the Area Director within 15 working days ofyour receipt of this Citation. The running of this contest 
period is not interrupted by an inforii1'3.l conference. 

If you decide to request an inforfllill conference, please complete, remove and post the page 5 Notice to Employees 
next to this Citation and Notification of Penalty as soon as the time, date, and place of the informal conference have 
been determined. Be sure to bring to the conference any and all supporting documentation of existing c-Onditions 
as well as any abatement steps taken thus far. If conditions >varrant, \Ve can enter into an informal settlement 
agreement which amicabiy resolves this matter without litigation or contest. 

Right to Contest- You have the right to contest this Citation and Notit1cation of Penalty. You may contest 
all citation items or only individual items. You IllilY also contest proposed penalties and/or abatement dates without 
contesting the underlying violations. L'nless vou inform the Area Director in writing tbat \'OU intend to contest 
the citation(s) and/or proposed penaltv(ies) within 15 working days after receipt. the citation(s) and the 
proposed penaltv(ies) "ill become a final order of the Occupational Safetv and Health Review Commission 
and may not be re"·iewed bv anv court or agency. 

Penalty Payment- Penalties are due ~:ithin 15 >vorking days of receipt of this notification unless contested. 
(See the enclosed booklet and the additional information provided related to the Debt Collection Act of 1982.) 
i\·lake your check or money order payable to ''DOL-OSHA"' . Please indicate the Inspection Number on the 
remittance . 

OSHA does not agree to any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check or money order for less 
than the full amount due, and will cash the check or money order as if these restrictions, conditions, or 
endorsements do not exist. 

Notification of Corrective Action - For each violation which you do not contest, you are required by 29 
CFR 1903 .19 to submit an Abatement Certification to the Area Director of the OSHA office issuing the citation 
and identified above. The certification must be sent by you within 10 calendar days of the abatement date 
indicated on the citation. For \VilJful and Repeat violations, documents (examples: photos, copies of receipts, 
training records, etc.) demonstrating that abatement is complete must aCC-Ompany the cenification. \\lb.ere the 
citation is classified as Serious and the citations states that abatement documentation is required, documents such 
as those described above are required to be submitted along \vith the abatement cenificate. If the citation indicates 
that the violation was corrected during the inspection, no abatement certification is required for that item. 

All abatement Yerification documents must contain the following information: 1) Your name and address; 2} 
the inspection number (found on the front page); 3) the citation and citation item number(s) to which the 
submission relates ; 4) a statement that the information is accurate; 5) the signature of the employer or employer's 
authorized representative; 6) the date the hazard was correcred; 7) a brief statement of how the hazard was 
corrected; and 8) a statement that affected employees and their representatives have been informed of the 
abatement. 

Tbe Ja\v also requires a copy of an abatement verification documents, required by 29 CFR 1903.19 to be sent to 
OSHA, also be posted at the location where the violation appeared and the corrective action took place. 

Employer Discrimination Unlawful- The law prohibits discrimination by an employer against an employee 
for filing a complaint or for exercising any rights under this Act. An employee \Vho believes that he/she has been 
discriminated against may file a complaint no later than 30 days after the discrimination occurred with the U .S. 
Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown above. 
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Employer Rights and Responsibilities - The enclosed bookler (OSHA 3000) outlines additional employer 
rights and responsibilities and should be read in conjunction with this notification. 

Notice to Employees- The Jaw gives an employee or his/her representative the opporrunity to object to any 
abatement date set for a violation if heisbe believes the date to be unreasonable. The contest must be mailed ro 
the U.S. Deparnnent of Labor Area Office at the address shmvn above and postmarked within 15 \vorking days 
(excluding weekends and Federal holidays) of the receipt by the employer of this Citation and Notification of 
Penalty. 

Inspection Activity Data - You should be aware thai OSHA publishes information on its inspection and 
citation activity on the Internet under the provisions of the Electronic Freedom of Information Act. The 
information related to your inspection wiJl be available 7 calendar days after the Citation Issuance Date. You are 
encouraged ro review the information concerning your establishment at \VW\V.OSHA.GOV. If you have any 
dispute \"·irn the accuracy of the information displayed, please contact this office. 

TilE OCCl'PATIOI\AL SAFETY Al\TD HEALTH ACT OF 1970 affords \vorkers the right 10 a safe workplace. OSHA requires employers 
to provide a workplace that is free of serious recognized hazards and in compliance with OSHA standards. Workers have the right to FILE 
A c m,-fPLiJl\-:'f WITH OSHA if they beLieve that mere are e ither violations of OSHA standards or serious workplace hazards. Contact. the 
OSHA Area office nearest you or contact our toll free number: 1-800-321 -0SIL-\ (6742) ... TTY 1-877--889-5627. To file a complaint online 
or obtain information on your rights in the workplace, visi t. OSHA's website at W'\'.w.osha.gov. 
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ABA TE~lENT CERTIFICATIOK 

Bonita Willingham, Area Director 
U.S . Department of Labor - OSHA 
444 Regency Parkway Dr. 
Lake Regency Office Bldg, Ste. 303 
Omaha, NE 68114 
Phone: (402)553-0171 

Loveland Products , Inc. 
71025 569th Avenue 
Fairbury, NE 68352 

The hazard referenced in Inspection Number 314061896 for violation identified as: 

Citation and Item was corrected on - ----

Method of correction: ----------------- ---- ---

*Abatement documentation is enclosed. f] check if applicable 

Citation and Item \Vas corrected on -----

Method of correction: - --- ---- - - ------ ---- ----

*Abatement documentation is enclosed. [] check if applicable 

Citation and Item was corrected on - ----

Method of correction: - ------------------- ----

*Abatement documentation is enclosed. [] check if applicable 

I attest that the information contained in this document is accurate and that the affected employees and their 
representatives have been informed of the abatement activities described in this cenification. 

Signarure (email address) 

Typed or Primed Name 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
OccupationaJ Safety and Health Administration 

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES OF INFORMAL CONFERENCE 

An informal conference bas been scheduled with OSHA to discuss the citation(s) issued on 

01/23/2012. The conference will be held at the OSHA office located at 444 Regency Parkway 

Dr., Lake Regency Office Bldg, Ste. 303, Omaha, NE, 68114 on at 

- ----- . Employees and/or representatives of employees have a right to attend an 

informa1 conference. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection Number: 314061896 
InspectionDates:07/28/2011-08/12/20ll 
Issuance Date: 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569tb Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 1 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 19I0.22(a}(2): Floor(s) of \VOrkroom(s) were not maintained in a clean and, so far as possible, a dry 
condition. 

Quonset Hut Storage Area: The floor in the hur is not maintained in a clean and dry condition. The roof of 
the structure has failed and after a rain shower, the water accumulates on the floors and has also damaged 
product stored in the structure. The damaged product {boxes holding plastic containers) has fallen over due to 
the water damage onto the floors and spilled the product. 

Abatement certification is required for this violation . The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the 
citations. 

Citation 1 Item 2 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.22(d)(l): On every building or other structure, or part thereof, used for mercantile, business, 
industria! or storage purposes, the loads approved by the building official \-..:ere not marked on plates of 
approved design and securely affixed to the building: 

At tbe following locations, the tloor loading has not been posted to show the floor capacity of tbe structure. 
Wirnout rhis knowledge it is possible to overload the floor to the point of failure: 

a. Office Area, 2nd level office and storage. 
b. Air Compressor area. 2nd level storage. 

Abatement cenitkation is required for this violation. The abatement certification sheer is enclosed with the 
citations_ 

See pages l through 5 of this Citation and I\ otiftcation of Penatcy for infonnation on employer and employee rights and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: LDveland Products. Inc. 

lnspedion ~Tumber: 314061896 
InspectionDates:07/28/2011-08/12/2011 
Issuance Date: 01123/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

The alleged violat.ions beJo\v have been grouped because they involve similar or related hazards that may 
increase the potential for injury resulting from an accident. 

Citation 1 Item 3a Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR l910. 38(c)(2): The employer failed to develop procedures for emergency evacuation \Vhich included 
the type of evacuation and exit route assignments: 

Throughout the Facility: The employer has not developed any type of exit routes for the employees tO follow 
in the event of an evacuation. The facility uses ammonia as part of their production and a release could harm 
any employee that does not evacuate to a safe, predetermined area. The ·evacuation plan should include a 
method for determining tbe safe route and rally point. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
include written verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videDs which you believe will be helpful. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the citations. 

See pages 1 through 5 of this Citation and Nmiiicalion of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities. 
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lJ .S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penaltv 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection Number: 31406 1896 
Inspection Dates: 07/28/20 11 -08/12/20 11 
Issuance Date: 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 3b Type of Violation: Serious 

. 29 CFR 1910.38(c)(4): The employer failed 10 develop procedures for emergency evacuation \Vhlch include 
procedures to account for all employees after an evacuation: 

Throughout the FaciUly: The employer has nor developed any type of system to account for the employees in 
the event of an evacuation. This \Vould include a method to track me daily employee counts so that there could 
be an accurate count at any evacuation location. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. Tbe documentation should 
include written verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results , and photographs or 
videos which you believe will be helpful. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the citations. 

Citation 1 Item 3c Type of Viol arion: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.38(d): The employer failed to have and maintain an employee alarm system. The alarm system 
must use a distinctive signal for each purpose: 

Throughout the Facility: The employer has not installed any form of alarm system whicb would notify the 
employees of an ammonia release. The reactor area does have an ammonia detector with a local alarm, but 
that does not provide for notification to the rest of the facility. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation . The documentation should 
include written verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe ·will be helpful. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the citations. 

See pages I through 5 of this Citation and :-lotification of Penalty for infonnation on employer and employee rights and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection Kombu: 314061896 
Inspection Dates: 07/28/2011 -08/12/2011 
Issuance Date: 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, ~"E 68352 

Citation 1 Item 4 T_yrpe of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.119(d)(3)(i)(B): Process safety information pertainjng to the equipment in the process md not 
include accurate Piping and Instrumentation Diagrams (P&ID): 

Throughout the Faci1ity: The Piping and Instrumenr.atjon Diagram developed for the system did not include an 
of the components of the system. Safety Relief Valves (SRV)located on the Nonh and Souf.b Reactors were not 
included in the diagram. The P&ID also omitted the SRV release locations. 

Abatement cenification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
include written verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe will be helpfuL The abatement certification sheet is enclosed \Vith the citations. 

Citation 1 Item 5 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.119(e)(3)(i): The process hazard analysis did not address the hazard of the process: 

Throughout the Facility: The Process Hazard Analysis (PHA) which \Vas performed in 2009 failed to address 
the hazards of the process. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
include written verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe will be helpful. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the citations .. 

See pages 1 tt".rough 5 of !.his Citation and >l'mification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and He.alth Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Kame: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection Number: 314061896 
Inspection Dates: 07/28/2011-08/12/2011 
Issuance Date; 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, 01E 68352 

Citation 1 Item 6 Type of Violation: Serious 

·29 CFR 1910.119(e)(3)(v): The process hazard analysis did not address faci lity siting : 

Throughout the Facility: The Process Hazard Analysis (PHA) which \Vas performed .in 2009 failed to address 
faci1ity siting. This would include a revie\v of the locations of each building and bow they could be potentially 
affected by the ammonia process. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
include written verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe will be helpfuL The abatement cenification sheet is enclosed with the citations. 

Citation 1 Item 7 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.119(e)(3)(vi): The process hazard analysis did not address Human Factors: 

Throughout the Facility: The Process Hazard Analysis (PIV\) which \Vas performed in 2009 failed to address 
human factors analysis. This would include a review of the interaction of the operatorsiemployees with the 
ammonia system. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. Tbe documentation should 
include \Vritten verification of abatement, appJicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe will be helpful. The abatement cenification sheet is enclosed v.:ith the citations. 

See pages 1 through 5 of Lh.is Ciration and Notificat ion of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection 1\"'umber: 314061896 
Inspection Dates: 07/28/2011 -08/1 2/2011 
Issuance Date: 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Cimtion 1 Item 8 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.119(f)(l)(i)(D): The employer has failed to develop and implement an operating procedure that 
addresses emergency shutdov·m whlcb includes the condition under whlch the shutdown is required, and the 
assignment of shut down responsibility. 

Throughout the Facility: The employer did not develop an emergency shutdown procedure that covers the 
situations in which an emergency shutdmvn would be required nor does it assign responsibility for initiating a , 
shm dmvn. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
include written verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe will be helpful. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed \.vith the citations. 

See pages. 1 throogh 5 of this Citation and Nocificarion of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penaltv 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection ~umber: 314061896 
Inspectjon Dates: 07/28/2011 -08/12/2011 
Issuance Date: 0112312012 

Inspedion Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 9 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.119(t)(l)(iii)(B): The employer has failed to develop and implement an operadng procedure 
discussing the precaurions necessary to prevent exposure; including engineering controls, administrative 
controls, and personaJ protective equipment. 

Throughom the Facility: The employer did nor develop an operaring procedure that that addresses how the 
employees will be protected from exposure to anhydrous ammonia. The company has developed basic 
procedures that discuss the production process but norhing that indicates ho\v the employees that \Vork \Vith the 
chemical are protected or how they would be protected in the event of an upset condition i.e. engineering 
control, PPE, or some other method. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
include written verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe will be helpful. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the citations. 

See pages 1 rhrough 5 of this Citation and .:-.lot:iiication of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibil ities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection !\"umber: 314061896 
Inspection Dates: 07/28/20 11 - 08/ 12/20 11 
Issuance Date: 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 10 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910. 119(t)(l)(iii)(C): ·The employer has failed to develop and implement an operating procedure 
discussing the control measures to be taken if physical contact or airborne exposure occurs. 

Throughout the Facility: The employer did not develop an operating procedure that discusses what acrions wili 
be taken in the event of an exposure ro anhydrous ammonia. The employer has failed to develop a procedure 
for response actions for employee exposure that \Vould include but is not limited to event escalation, emergency 
response, or containment. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
include \vritten verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe will be helpful. The abatement certit1cation sheet is enclosed \vith the citations. 

See pages 1 ilirough 5 of this Citation and Notification of Penalcy for information on employer and employee riglus and responsibilities . 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Kame: L{)veland Products, Inc. 

Inspection Number: 3140618 96 
Inspection Dates: 07/28/2011 -08/12/2011 
Issuance Date: 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 11 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR l910.1J9(j)(2): The employer didn't establish and implement written procedures to maintain the on­
going integrity of process equipment. 

Throughout the Facility: The employer has not developed any procedures for ensuring rhe mechanical integrity 
of the system. This \vould include a program outlining preventatjve maintenance, component replacement, 
and/or repair. One such example would be a valve replacement procedure to include a change out schedule for 
safety relieve valves. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for thjs violation. The documentation should 
include written verification of abatement. applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe wiH be helpful. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the citations. 

See pages 1 Lhrough 5 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee righlS and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection Num~r: 314061896 
Inspection Dates: 07/28/201 1-08/12/2011 
Issuance Date: 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569tb Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 12 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.1 19(j)(4)(ii): Inspections and tests of process equipment did nor follow recognized and generally 
accepted good engineering practices. 

Throughout the Production area, Ammonia transfer components and vessels: The piping for the system was 
not inspected as outlined in any applicable recognized and generally accepted good engineering practices. A 
ponion of the process piping is underground and can not be inspected and the exposed piping has only been 
inspected visually, no actual thickness testing has been accomplished. Two reactor vesseJs at the facility have 
been inspected by plant personnel; however, those persons do not carry any type of certificadons for this type 
of inspection activity. 

Abatement certifi.cation and abatement documentation is required for this violation . The documentation should 
include \.vritten verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos wbich you believe will be helpful. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the citations. 

See pages 1 lhrough 5 of this Citation and t\mification of Penally for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safery and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company ~arne: Loveland Prcxiucts, Inc. 

Inspection Number: 314061896 
lnspectionDates: 07/28/20ll-08/12/2011 
Issuance Date: 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569tb A venue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 13 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.119(k)(2): Hot work permits utilized by the employer did not document that the fire prevention 
and protection requiremems in 29 CFR 1910.252(a) bave been implemented prior ro beginning the hot work 
operations; the dates(s) authorized for hot work; and the identity of the object on which hot \vork is to be 
performed. 

Throughout the Facility: The Hot \Vork Permits being utilized by the employer did not document that the fire 
prevention and protection requirements in 29 CFR l910.252(a) were being implemented prior to the beginning 
of hot work operations nor did it specify the object in which the work was to be performed. 

Aba[emem certification is required for this violation. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the 
citations. 

See pages 1 through 5 of this Cirntion and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibililies. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Satery and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

InspectionNurnnber: 314061896 
Inspection Dates: 07/28/2011 - 08/ 12i20 11 
Issuance Date: 01123/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 14 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.119{1)(1): The employer didn't establish and implement written procedures to manage changes to 
process chemica1s, technology, equipment, and procedures~ and changes to facilities that affect a covered 
process. 

Throughout the Facility: The employer didn' t develop any implement any written procedures to ensure that 
any changes to process equipment included all elements outlined in the standard. This would include the 
technical basis for the change; the impact of the change on safety and health ~ modifications to the operating 
procedures; necessary time period for the change; and authorization requirements for the proposed change. 
The company implemented changes to the system in 2010 and did not have a wrirren procedure in place. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
include \Vritten verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe will be helpfuJ . The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the citations. 

See pages I through 5 of this Citation and Notification of Penal[)' for information on employer and employee righrs and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safery and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection Number: 314061896 
Inspection Dates: 0 7/28/2011 -08/12/2011 
Issuance Date: 01 /23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 15 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.119(1)(4): The employer failed maintain or update process safety information after a change was 
made to the system. 

Throughout the Facility: In June of 2010, !:be emergency stop sys(em was replaced with an air actuated system 
which was nm a replacement in kind. The employer failed to update the process safety information with 
information regarding the change; specifically the safety systems associated with the process. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
include v.·Titten verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos whicb you believe will be helpful. The abatemem certification sheet is enclosed with the citations. 

See pages 1 through 5 of Ibis Cimtion and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection Number~ 314061896 
lnspedion Dates: 07/28/2011 - 08/ 12i20 11 
Issuance Date: 01 /23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 16 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.119(o)(l): The employer failed to conduct an audit to evaluate compliance with the provisions of 
this section at least every three years to verify that the procedures and practices developed under the standard 
are adequate and being follm.ved. 

Throughout the Facility: The employer conducted a compliance audit in the spring of 2009 that failed to 
address many of the Process Safety Management elements identified in the standard. This would include but is 
not limited to Mechanical Integrity (no \\Titten procedures), Management of Change (No procedure for change 
actions), Process Hazard Analysis (failed to review siting and human factors), and Emergency Response. 

Abatemem certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
include written verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe will be helpful. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the citations. 

See pages I through 5 of this Ciralion and Notification of Penalty for infonnalion on employer and employee rights and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupaiional Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penaltv 

Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection Number: 314061896 
lllspection Dates~ 07/28/2011 - 08/12/2011 
Issuance Date~ 01 /23/2012 

Company 1\"'ame~ 
Inspection Site~ 71025 569th A venue, Fairbury, ~E 68352 

Citation 1 Item 17 Type of Violaiion : Serious 

29 CFR 1910.119(o)(4): The employer failed to promptly determine and document an appropriate response to 
each of the findings of the compliance audit, and document that deficiencies have been corrected. 

Throughout !be Facility: The employer failed to develop a system to track any identified det1ciencies nored 
during he Process Safety Management Audit . There were six items identified in the spring 2009 audit and no 
method to track those open items until they \Vere corrected. The employer has also failed to document that the 
items have been corrected. 

Abatement certification and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
mclude written verit1cation of abatement. applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe \vill be helpful. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the citations. 

See pages I through S of this Citation and Nmification of Penalty for informacion on employer and employee rights and responsibiHries . 

Citation and Notification of Penal[]• Page 20 of 25 Default 



U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection .1'\umber: 314061896 
Inspection Dates: 07/28/20 11 -08/ 12/2011 
Issuance Date: 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 18 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.147(c)(4)(ii): The energy control procedures did not clearly and specificaUy ourline the scope, 
purpose , authorization, rules, and techniques to be utilized for the control of hazardous energy , including , but 
not limited to the items of this section: 

Throughout the Facility: Lockout/tagout procedures did not meet the requirements outlined above. The 
developed procedures are vague in that they do not clearly specify the techniques in w.hich lockout operations 
\Vill be performed and they do not clearly indicate the locations where energy may be isolated (switches, 
valves , breaker numbers, etc) . Some equipment examples include but are not limited to the Liqid Plant Nona 
Rx and Blender. 

Abatement certitication and abatement documentation is required for this violation. The documentation should 
include written verification of abatement, applicable measurements or monitoring results, and photographs or 
videos which you believe will be helpful. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the cita:tions. 

See pages 1 lhrough 5 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty fo r information on employer and employee righrs and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Hearth Administration 

Citation and Notification of PenaJty 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection :\'umber: 314061896 
Inspection Dates: 07/28/2011 -08i 12/2011 
Issuance Date: 01/23;'2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 19 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.147(c)(6)(i): The employer did not conduct a periodic inspection of the energy control procedme 
at least annually to ensure that the procedure and the requirement of this standard were being followed: 

Throughout the Facility: The employer failed to conduct a periodic inspection of the energy control procedures 
as outlined in the standard. 

Abatement certification is required for this violation. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the 
citations. 

Citation 1 Item 20 Type of Violation; Serious 

29 CFR 1910.303(g)(2)(i): Live parts of electric equipment operating at 50 volts or more ~tvere not guarded 
against accidental contact by approved cabinets or other forms of approved enclosures. 

Quonset Hut Storage Area: There is a live 480 volt electrical line attached ro the east wall that is not protected 
from contact by some type of enclosure or by de-energizing and locking out the breaker that provides current 
to the line. 

Abatement cenification is required for this violation. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the 
citations. 

See pages 1 through 5 of this Citation and ;..lotification of Penalty for infoTll12tion on employer and employee rights and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Adminjstration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection Number: 314061896 
InspedionDates ~ 07/28/2011-08/ 12/2011 

Issuance Date: 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 21 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.305(b)(2)(i): PuH boxes, junction boxes, and fittings were not provided with covers approved for 
the purpose: 

Quonset Hut: Three electrical boxes Iocated to the east of the main entrance ro the faciJ ity were not provided 
with a cover to prevent accidental contact with the live parts Vi1itbin. The panels ranged in voltage from 120 to 

480. Covers for rn·o of the panels \Vere on the floor in the area and the third has a hinged door that had been 
left open. 

Abatement cenification is required for this violation. The abatement certification sheer is enclosed with the 
citations. 

Citation 1 Item 22 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.305(e)(1): Cabinets. cutour boxes, fittings , boxes. and panelboard enclosures in damp or \Vet 
locations were not installed to prevent moisture or water from entering and accumulating w·ithin the enclosures: 

North and South Reactor Area: The electrical enclosures located on the \vest wall behind the reactors are not 
designed for exposure to water and have become corroded. 

Abatemem certification is required for this violation. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the 
citations. 

See pages 1 through 5 of this Citation and l\'otification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights. and responsibil ities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penaltl' 

Company ~arne: Loveland Products, Inc. 

Inspection Number: 314061896 
Inspet:tionDates:07/28/2011- 08/12/2011 
Issuance Date: 01/23 /2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue, Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 1 Item 23 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.305(g)(I)(iv)(A): Flexible cords and/or cables were used as a substitute for the fixed wiring of a 
structure: 

North Reactor Room, East Wall: An extension cord was plugged into an outlet used ro pow·er a length of heat 
tape. The heat tape is used to prevent a v.1ater line from freezing when the temperatures drop . 

Abatement certification is required for this violation. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the 
citations. 

Citation 1 Item 24 Type of Violation: Serious 

29 CFR 1910.1200(h)(3)(iii): Employee training did not include the measures employees can take to protect 
themselves from chemical hazards, including specific procedures the employer had implemented to protect 
employees from exposure ro hazardous chemicals: 

Throughout the company: The emp1oyer failed to provide training as prescribed in the paragraph above in that 
the employees had nor been trained on the hazards of the chemicals that they commonly use including but not 
limited to Accomplish 3-0-D, Titan 3-0-0, and other general lubricants. 

Abatement certification is required for this violation. The abatement certification sheet is enclosed with the 
citations. 

See pages 1 r.'rrough 5 of this Citation and Kotification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company .1\ame: Loveland Products, Inc. 

InspectionXurrnber: 314061896 
InspectionDates: 07/28/2011 -08/12/2011 
Issuance Date: 01/23/2012 

Inspection Site: 71025 569th Avenue. Fairbury, NE 68352 

Citation 2 Item 1 Type of Violation: Other 

29 CFR 1910.178(1)(6): The employer did not cenify that each operator has been trained and evaluared as 
required by this paragraph (1). The cenification shall include the name of the operator, the date of the training, 
the date of the evaluation, aod the identity of the person(s) performing the training or evaluation. 

Tbroug.hout the Facility: The employer failed to ensure that written cenific.atioo for each fork truck operator 
'"'as wrirren and maintained as orrtlined in the standard. 

Abatemem certification is required for this violation. The abatement cenificatioo sheet is enclosed with the 
citations. 

See pages 1 tlrrough 5 of this Citation and Notiii.ca£ion of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities . 

Citation and I\'otification of Penalty Page 25 of 25 Default 


